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Salisbury’s Union Station is an important landmark in the transportation history of the
lower Eastern Shore. Built in 1913-14 for the New York, Philadelphia, and Norfolk and the
Baltimore, Chesapeake, & Atlantic railroad companies, Union Station was designed as a joint
facility to better serve travelers or freight heading north, south, east, or west. Designed in a
Georgian Revival style with Flemish bond walls accented with stone trimmings, the brick station
was planned in an elaborate fashion with a large central waiting room and mens’ and ladies’
facilities to each end.

For over twenty years, the residents of Salisbury clamored for a new passenger station
along the New York, Philadelphia, and Norfolk rail line due to the inadequate nature of the old
station. Passenger service and commercial shipping in particular had overwhelmed the nineteenth-
century facilities. An article that appeared in the Salisbury Advertiser in September 1890 summed
up the discontent many felt for the crowded and inadequate conditions onthe N. Y. P. & N.
station. The paper stated:

...we would like to say a word concerning the miserable shed-like building which passes

Jor a station house at the depot of the N. Y. P. & N. railroad in Salisbury. So important

a place as Salisbury is entitled to a good, convenient station house where passengers can

wait comfortably, and on boarding the train or alighting, do so without being obliged to

climb over boxes and barrels on a high crowded platform. The capacity of the building
is entirely inadequate to the business and the office, and despite the efforts of the agent

1o keep things in order at times, the whole building, platforms, waiting rooms, and all,

are crowded with an indiscriminate mass of humanity and freight. This is particulariy

the case with the fruit shipping season.

Despite constant urging by the public, over twenty years passed before solid progress was
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made on providing new railroad accommodations. Some relief was provided in 1897 when
William F. Allen negotiated with the N. Y. P. & N. for a separate switch on his agricultural estate
south of the city, thereby diverting a large segment of berry shipments that had helped overload
the freight sheds in Salisbury.
In an effort to solve inadequacies on both the N. Y. P. & N. as well as the B. C. & A. line,
a joint facility known as Union Station was conceived for the intersection of the two railroads.
On April 8, 1911 the Salisbury Advertiser announced the construction plans:
After years of deliberation and discussion it begins to look as though Salisbury is at last
to have a union station. According to the reports given out it has finally been decided to
build an up-to-date union station at the present site of the B. C. & A. Junction. Salisbury
has long been a sufferer on account of the disreputable station on both of the railroads
here, stations that would be a disgrace to any village from one to two hundred
inhabitants, and the people will generally rejoice when born are torn down, and one put
up more in keeping with the size and importance of this city.... Work will probably begin
on the new station early in the fall, if the present plans are carried out.
Despite great optimism, another two years passed before the cornerstone was set. Work was
begun in late 1913, and by April 1914 The Wicomico News reported
The contractors for the erection of the new union (sic) station in Salisbury expect to
complete the brickwork this week, and if good weather continues the roof will be on by
the middle of this month. The sheds are completed.
Ironically, in light of the years of complaints and waiting, the new station opened later that year
with little celebration. According to the station’s first ticket agent Rollie W. Hastings, he
unceremoniously walked over to the new facility with a cash box and sold the first ticket for a trip

to Princess Anne. Union Station served the citizens of Salisbury for a little over forty years when

the Pennsylvania Railroad discontinued passenger service in 1958.
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1. Name of Property (indicate preferred name)
historic Union Station
other

2. Location

street and number _ North Salisburv Boulevard not for publication
city, town Salisbury vicinity
county Wicomico

3. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name English Sign Svstems
street and number North Division Street telephone
city, town Salisbury state  MD Zip code 21801

4. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Wicomico County Clerk of Court tax map and parcel Map Parcel

city. town Salisburv. Marvland liber folio

5. Primary | aocation of Additional Data

Contributing Resource in National Register District
Contributing Resource in Local Historic District
Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Recorded by HABS/HAER

Historic Structure Report or Research Report at MHT

Other:

6. Classification

Category Ownership Current Function Resource Count
district public agricuiture landscape Contributing Noncontributing
x building(s) X private commerceftrade recreation/culture 1 buiidings

structure both defense religion sites

site domestic social structures

object education X transportation objects
funerary work in progress 1 Total
government unknown
health care vacant/not in use Number of Contributing Resources

industry other: previously listed in the Inventory
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7. Description

Condition
excellent deteriorated
X good ruins
fair altered

Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it
exists today.

Union Station is located along the Conrail tracks on Wilson Street in the commercial/industrial section of Salisbury,
Wicomico County, Maryland. The station is located on the west side of the railroad with its principal axis oriented on a
north/south axis.

Built in 1913-14, the single-story brick station is supported on a concrete foundation with a brick watertable accented
with a stone cap. The Flemish bond brick walls rise to a medium sloped hip roof covered with slate. Flat roofed wings
extend to the north and south and a bracketed shed roof extends around three sides. The track side of the station retains its
platform and metal supported shed.

Erected in Flemish bond, the brick exterior of the station is accented with stone quoins and a modillion block corice
trims the perimeter of the roof. A marble datestone inscribed “1913" is fixed in the wall of the station. The east and west
sides of the main block are enhanced by gable roofed projections featuring round arched window openings. Rising through
the north end of the main block is a squarish brick stack finished with a corbelled cap.

The interior has been drastically altered to suit several commercial businesses since the Pennsylvania Railroad sold the
property.
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Name  Union Station

Continuation Sheet

Number _8 Page 1

8. Significance

Period Areas of Significance Check and justify below
1600-1699 agriculture econonics health/medicine performing arts
1700-1799 archeology education industry philosophy
1800-1899 X architecture engineering invention politics/government
x 1900-1999 art entertainment/ landscape architecture religion
20006- commerce recreation iaw science
communications ethnic heritage literature social history
community planning expioration/ maritime history transportation
conservation settlement military other:
Significance dates Architect
Specific dates 1913-14 Builder

Evaluation for:

National Register _Maryland Register X not evaluated

Prepare a one-paragraph summary statement of significance addressing applicable criteria, followed by a narrative discussion of the
history of the resource and its context. (For compliance reports, complete evaluation on a DOE Form — see manual.)

Salisbury’s Union Station is an important landmark in the transportation history of the lower Eastern Shore. Built in
1913-14 for the New York, Philadelphia, and Norfolk and the Baltimore, Chesapeake, & Atlantic railroad companies,
Union Station was designed as a joint facility to better serve travelers or freight heading north, south, east, or west.
Designed in a Georgian Revival style with Flemish bond walls accented with stone trimmings, the brick station was
designed and built in an elaborate fashion with a large central waiting room and mens’ and ladies’ facilities to each end.

For over twenty years, the residents of Salisbury clamored for a new passenger station along the New York, Philadelphiz,
and Norfolk rail line due to the inadequate nature of the old station. Passenger service and commercial shipping had
increased to such a degree that the small Victorian frame depot and freight sheds could not handle the additional traffic. An
article that appeared in the Salisbury Advertiser in September 1890 summed up the discontent many felt for the crowded
and inadequate conditions of the N. Y. P. & N. station. The paper stated:

...we would like to say a word concerning the miserable shed-like building which passes for a station house at the
depot of the N. Y. P. & N. railroad in Salisbury. So important a place as Salisbury is entitled to a good, convenient
station house where passengers can wait comfortably, and on boarding the train or alighting, do sc without being

obliged to climb over boxes and barrels on a high crowded platform. The capacity of the building is entirely
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Continuation Sheet

Number _8 Page 2

iradequate to the business of the office, and despite the efforts of the agent to keep things in order at times, the whole
building, platforms, waiting rooms, and all, are crowded with an indiscriminate mass of humanity and freight. This is
particularly the case with the fruit shipping season.'

Despite constant urging by the public, over twenty years passed before solid progress was made on providing new
railroad accommodations. In an effort to solve inadequacies on both the N. Y. P. & N. as well as the B. C. & A. line a joint
facility known as Union Station was conceived for the intersection of the two rail lines. On April 8, 1911 the Salisbury
Advertiser announced the construction plans

After years of deliberation and discussion it begins to look as though Salisbury is at last to have a union station.

According to the reports given out it has finally been decided to build an up-to-date union station on the present site

of the B. C. & A. Junction. Salisbury has long been a sufferer on account of the disreputable station on both of the

railroads here, stations that would be a disgrace to any village from one to two hundred inhabitants, and the people

will generally rejoice when both are torn down, and one put up more in keeping with the size and importance of this
city... Work will probably begin on the new station early in the fall, if the present plans are carried out.?

Despite great optimism, another two years passed before the comerstone was set. Work was begun in late 1913, and by
April 1914 The Wicomico News stated

The contractors for erection of the new union (sic) station in Salisbury expect to complete the brickwork this week,
and if good weather continues the roof will be on by the middle of this month. The sheds are completed.’

Ironically, when the new station opened later that year, there was little celebration according to the station’s first ticket
agent, Rollie W. Hastings, who walked over to the new facility with a cash box and sold the first ticket for a trip to Princess
Anne.* Union Station served the citizens of Salisbury for a little over forty years when the Pennsylvania Railroad
discontinued passenger service in 1958.°

! Salisbury Advertiser, 20 September 1890.
? Salisbury Advertiser, 8 April 1911.
* The Wicomico News, 2 April 1914.

“ John C. Hayman, Rails Along the Chesapeake: A History of Railroading on the Delmarva Peninsula, 1827-1978,
Marvadel Publishers, 1979, pp. 101-102.

* Hayman, p. 102.




9. Major Bibliographical References WI-150

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of project area
Acreage surveyed 1/4 acre
Quadrangle name Salisbury, Maryland Quadrangle scale 1:24,000

Verbal boundary description and justification

The boundary of this property coincides with the metes and bounds of the current lot.

11. Form Prepared by

nameftitie Paul B. Touart, Architectural Historian

organization Private Consultant

street & number P.O.Box 5 date 10/15/00
city or town Westover, Maryland 21871 phone 410-651-1094

The Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties was officially created by an Act of the Maryland Legislature to
be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,
1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record
purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of individual property
rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
DHCD/DHCP
100 Community Place
Crownsville, MD 21032
410-514-7600
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Maryland Historical Trust

State Historic Sites Inventory Form

Survey No. WI - 150

Magi No. 2301505719

DOE yes no

1. Name

{indicate preferred name)

historic UNION RAILROAD STATION

and/or common

Salisbury Station

2. Location

street & number

Wilson Street and Conraii Tracks

— not for publication

city, town Saiisbury ____ vicinity of congressional district First

state Marvyland county Wicomico

3. Classification

Category Ownership Status Present Use

— district- — public X__ occupied agriculture —___ museum

_X_building(s) ___ private ____ unoccupied _ 2 commercial ___ park

_ structure — both —_ work in progress —_ educational — private residence

—__ site Public Acquisition Accessible ___ entertainment —__religious

- __ object ___in process ____yes: restricted —__government ___ scientific

— being considered ___yes: unrestricted —__ industrial ___ transportation
___not applicable —__no —__ military ___other:

4- owner Of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name CCHNRAIL

street & number

101 Delaware Avenue

telephone no.: 800-441-8006

city, town Harrington state and zip code Dr 19952

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Wicomico County Courthouse liber

street & number Main and N. Division Streets folio

city, town Salisburv state Marvland

6. Representation in Existing uistorical surveys

title NONE

) c{ate —federal ___ state ___county ___ local
depository for survey records

city, town state




7. Description Survey No. yp _ 159

Condition Check one Check one

___excellent —X_ deteriorated ___ unaltered X__ original site

—_good —__ruins _X_ altered —_ moved date of move
__ fair —__ unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

The Union Railroad Station is located on Wilson Street and faces the
Conrail tracks in downtown Salisbury. It was built in 1913-1914 by the
Pennsvlvania Railroad Company.

The exterior of the building is brick and consisted of three sections.
The center section has a central pavillion with wings. The upper portion
of the pavillion has a triangular pediment with a bracketed raking cornice.
Inside of it is a false Palladian window. On the lower portion of the
pavillion is a 9/1 sash-window, flanked by 6/6 windows on either side.
Union Station has a large waiting area in the central portion, gentlemen's
and ladies' restrooms on either side, an occagonal shaped ofFlce for
tickets, a baggage room and-an Express Office.

A two—panel door and a 9/1 window are on each side of the central
pavillion. Between the doors and single windows and roofline are fan-
shaped windows.

A slate hip roof covered this section of the building. A brick
chimney with a corbeled cap is centered on the north gable end of the
hip roof.

The wings, which extend from the central section to the north and
south, has a parapeted roof. An enlarged belt course that includes cornice
and modillions extends approximately one foot beneath the top 'of the parapet
wall. A bracketed tin shed roof protects the north and south sides of the
building. Beneath it on the west side of the wings are sets of 9/1 and 6/1
windows.

The north side of the building has a central door with a rectangular
transom window and sidelights. On opposite sides of the door are a window
and a glass-paneled transomed door.

On the south face there was a glass-paneled transomed (three lights)
door and a 9/1 window. The east side that faces the tracks is identical to
the west side. The only difference is that it has.a tin butterfly roof
supported by four-branched, arched brackets on a square column base. This
extends over the raised loading platform for protection. On this side of
the building is the cornerstone inscribed with the date 1913.

(Continued on White Sheet)



|

8. Significance Survey No.  WI - 150

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

—— prehistoric ___ archeology-prehistoric __ community planning ____landscape architecture____ religion

—1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic —__conservation — law ___ science
—1500-1599 ____ agriculture X __ economics — literature —_ sculpture

——-1600-1699 _x architecture —education —— military —_ social/

——1700-1799 ___ art —__engineering — _ music humanitarian

—1800-1899 _* commerce ___exploration/settiement ___ phllosophy ___theater

_X_ 1900- ____ communications ____industry ___ politics/government _%X _ transportation

____invention — other (specify)
Specific dates Builder/Architect

check: Applicable Criteria: _ A _ B _C _ D
and/or
Applicable Exception: _ A B C D E F G

Level of Significance: _ national _ state _ local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.

Saliébury; Maryland is:one of -the largest and most . prosperous
communities of the Eastern Shore. Historically, this was due largely to

the fact that two major rail lines intersected there and that it was the
head of navigation for the Wicomico River.

The B. €. and A. and N.Y.P. and N. rail intersection in Salisbury
was an ideal location for a passenger station and that is why the station
was built there. People were able to travel in all directions from the
station. It was in the center of the city and was open 24 hours a day.
In railroading's "heyday,'" the waiting room was always full. Rollie
Hastings remembered a particular July 4th, which was always the biggest day
of the year, when 770 tickets were sold. People used the trains because
they were the fastest, cheapest and easiest way to get anywhere. The B, C.
and A. alone carried 80,000 passengers during one prosperous year.

Because so many people utilized Union Station, and it was in a central
location, other businesses either started or prospered because of the railroad
business that passed through. Two businesses that opened in reaction to the
needs of the busy station were the bus and taxi services. Both of these
started about the same time that the present station opened. They transported

people to and from the station from the downtown area and the areas surrounding
Salsibury.

The Express Company, which had its office in the station, was a convenient
place for people to mail packages. It had the advantage of being able to ship
parcels on both lines from the same office.

The steamers that connected Baltimore and Cape Charles to the Eastern

Shore grew and prospered by complementing rail service. The steamers had to
keep up with the many passengers traveling through Union Station.

(Continued on WhiFe Sheet)



9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No.

WI - 150

See Continuation Sheet 9.1.

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property 1/4 acre
Quadrangle name

UIM References (4o NOT complete UTM references

AL ] L Lo B

Quadrangle scale

L] Ll

Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing

el L |y T

L

o I T JI Lol ga] D|
|
I O O 1Jl [

-

Verbal boundary description and justification

Bounded on the east by the tracks running north-south and on the north by the
tracks running east-west. The west and south boundaries are made by Wilson Street

and Railroad Avenue.

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state N/A code county

code

state code county

code

11. Form Prepared By

name/title Lauren L. Dianich

organization N/A date May 18, 1984
street & number 203 East William Street telephone 543—1703‘ o
city or town o Salisbury state Maryland

o

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section

was officially created by
be found in the Annotated
181 KA, 1974 supplement.

S R

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any 1nfr1ngement of

individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust

Shaw House
21 State Circle

Annapolis, Maryland 21401

(301) 269-2438

PS-2746



7. DESCRIPTION (Continued)

All exterior walls have a water table accented with stone molding. The
six corners on the center section and the wings are decorated with plain stone
quoins. All windows and doors on each side are topped with flat brick segmental
arches and pronounced beveled keystones.

The building appears to be structurally sound. The wood trim and brackets
supporting the shed and butterfly roofs are original or are very close reproduct-
ions. The slate roof is in good condition with few tiles noticeably broken.

The tin roof encircling three sides of the building is still intact.

Unfortunately, many of the windows and doors have been bricked in or boarded
over. Overhead garage doors have replaced some of the doors and triple windows.
A partition has been erected on the loading ramp.

According to Mr. Rollie Hastings (a ticket agent there for many years), the
building was beautiful and very impressive while in use. The interior had high
cellings and the walls and ceiling (made of molded plaster) were painted ivory.
The floors were cement and ornate radiators were used for heat. The lighting was
electric but the windows and skylights provided abundant natural light.

The main waiting area had a wooden bench running the length of the room;

this area stayed full all day. A beautiful clock was the focal point, according
to Mr. Hastings.

The ladies' and men's restrooms had stalls made of pink Arkansas marble. The
ladies' room had a couch, a settee, and a table for relaxing and playing cards.

The main ticket office was octagonal-shaped and a brass bar was located outside

of it to help form ticket lines. There was a separate baggage room in the station
as well,

In the same building, but not owned by the same company, was the Express Office.
It was similar to the present-day UPS. Mail was taken to the station also. It was
picked up by a separate mail car that was connected to a passenger train (mail was
sorted on the car). All of the equipment (including a hand-operated telegraph) was
very modern for that time,

Very little of the interior resembles what it looked like when it was in use.
Different floors have been put in or existing floors have been raised, lighting
fixtures are different, doors have been cut into walls, and all of it is in poor
condition, due to lack of maintenance. Portions of the bathrooms, office walls,
radiators, and plaster ceiling are original.
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8. SIGNIFICANCE (ontinued)

Ocean City, before the start of passenger service, was virtually a barren
beach., As passenger service out of Union Station grew, so did the beach resort.
Many people in Wicomico County would pack picnic lunches and go to Ocean City.
The B. C. and A. handled many excursions out of Salisbury during the summer,
Special ticket prices as low as one dollar for a round trip (half the normal
price) were offered to encourage large groups to take trips to the ocean.

The governmment even utilized the trains and station. During WW II, men
being drafted came through the station en route to their assignments.

The new station also provided jobs for some Salisbury residents. Dock
loaders, track supervisors, janitors, mail clerks, and ticket agents were
employed there. Hundreds of thousands of people passed through the station, and
the convenient transportation provided by the station changed the lifestyles of
many by making travel available at more affordable prices.

As the history of Union Station shows, it was an essential part of passenger
service and the heritage of Salisbury. It was a building for local citizens and
others to admire and use. Although it is no longer used for railroading purposes,
it stands as a reminder of the role of the railroad for Salisbury and cities
across the nation,

(Architectural description and statement of significance are from "A Neglected
Landmark" by Lauren Dianich).
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